
    6:00 PM

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Vision Statement

3. Consent Agenda 6:00 PM - 6:10 PM
A. Minutes of August 28, 2023
B. Warrants

4. Public Comment 6:10 PM - 6:30 PM

5. Health Impact Assessment for Benn High 6:30 PM - 6:45 PM

6. Benn High Development Agreement 6:45 PM - 7:20 PM

7. Errors and Omissions 7:20 PM - 7:25 PM

8. Appointment to Boards and Commissions 7:25 PM - 7:30 PM

9. Manager's Report 7:30 PM - 7:40 PM

10. Upcoming Agendas 7:40 PM - 7:45 PM

11. Other Business 7:45 PM - 7:55 PM

We endeavor to host inclusive, accessible events that enable all individuals to 
engage and participate fully.  To request an accommodation or for inquiries about 

accessibility, please contact Paul Dansereau, Facilities Director: 
pdansereau@benningtonvt.org or call 802-447-9715.

130 River Street
Bennington, Vermont 05201

A G E N D A

M E E T I N G   N O T I C E
BENNINGTON SELECT BOARD

Monday, September 11, 2023
Bennington Fire Facility

Multi-Purpose Room – 3rd Floor

M:\Manager\Michele\MyFiles\selectboard\2023\a91123spb



1 
 

BENNINGTON SELECT BOARD MEETING 1 

130 RIVER STREET 2 

BENNINGTON, VERMONT 05201 3 

AUGUST 28, 2023 4 

MINUTES 5 

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Jeannie Jenkins-Chair; Tom Haley-Vice Chair; Jeanne 6 
Conner; Ed Woods; Gary Corey; and Jim Carroll.  7 

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Sarah Perrin.  8 

ALSO PRESENT: Stuart Hurd-Town Manager; Dan Monks-Assistant Town Manager; Shannon 9 
Barsotti-Community Development Director; Jonah Spivak-Communication Coordinator; Jack 10 
Rossiter-Munley-ECDC Update; Scott Davis; Sam Restino; Sharon Stepp; Chloe Harris; 10 11 
citizens; Josh Boucher-CAT-TV; and Nancy H. Lively-Secretary. 12 

 At 6:02pm, Chair Jeannie Jenkins called the meeting to order.   13 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   14 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 15 

2. VISION STATEMENT 16 

 Ms. Conner read the Town’s Vision Statement that was adopted by the Select Board on 17 
August 24, 2020: 18 

“Bennington is a welcoming, engaged, inclusive, resilient community where everyone 19 
regardless of identity shares in our vitality and benefits from an outstanding quality of life.” 20 

 Mr. Carroll issued a public apology to Sarah Perrin and all others present for what he felt 21 
were inappropriate comments that he had made to Ms. Perrin at the last Select Board meeting.  22 
Ms. Perrin, although absent tonight, had previously told Mr. Carroll that she didn’t feel it was 23 
necessary to do so. 24 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 25 

    A. MINUTES OF AUGUST 14, 2023 26 

    B. WARRANTS 27 

    C. LIQUOR LICENSE 28 

    Jim Carroll moved and Jeanne Conner seconded to approve the Consent Agenda 29 
amended as follows: 30 



2 
 

Minutes of August 14, 2023, Lines 13 and 229, Change “Rhonda Maki” 31 
to “Martha Mackey” 32 

   Minutes of August 14, 2023, Line 333, Change “would like” to “asked” 33 

 Mr. Woods asked Mr. Hurd if the Doxsee Roofing Repair to the Town Office roof was 34 
just a repair, and Mr. Hurd answered yes. 35 

 Mr. Woods asked Mr. Hurd if the 2 industrial refrigerators from Hollisters Appliance 36 
were new or repairs, and Mr. Hurd responded that they were replacements for the Fire Facility. 37 

 Ms. Jenkins asked Mr. Hurd about the Casella Waste invoice for trash from MAU, and 38 
Mr. Hurd answered that we will be reimbursed for that. 39 

The motion carried with Sarah Perrin absent. 40 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 41 

The following Public Comment Practices to make the experience for all involved a 42 
productive and informative use of the Public Comment period at Select Board meetings was 43 
placed on the podium for those that wish to make Public Comments to reference: 44 

1. Public Comment is to allow residents an opportunity to share information or make 45 
announcements that benefit the community at large. 46 

2. The topic should not be related to an agenda item.  If a member of the public wants to 47 
comment on an agenda item they can do so during the discussion of that item. 48 

3. Comments should be 3 minutes or less. 49 

4. You are required to state your real name and town of residence. 50 

5. Sharing comments, announcements and concerns are encouraged rather than asking 51 
questions.  Public Comment is not a time for discussion.  If you have specific questions it is best 52 
to call the Town Manager to get a full explanation and accurate information. 53 

6. If the topic requires much discussion the item will be considered as an agenda item at a 54 
future meeting. 55 

______________________________________________________________________________ 56 

Scott Davis: Noted that federal and state laws classify e-bikes as bicycles and that their usage 57 
has recently increased.  He has found the e-bike riders to not be rude and encourages the 58 
Select Board to consider posting a speed limit for all bicycles of no more than 15 mph and to 59 
require signaling when passing in lieu of completely banning them on the pathways.  He also 60 
requested that the Town pursue a grant for lighting - similar to the one for the Riverwalk - for 61 
the Rail Trail.    62 



3 
 

Sam Restino: 1. The following should be future agenda items - CTC fire; EPA meeting on the Jard 63 
site; Skate Park update; and a Benn Hi update.  2. Urges the Select Board to approach 64 
businesses and ask them how they’re doing.  3. Get information out to those who are not able 65 
to acquire it via the methods that we are currently using.    66 

Sharon Stepp: Stated that the traffic on South Stream Road is dangerous, and even with the 67 
speed limits of 25mph to 35mph, it needs to slow down.  Mr. Hurd: Said for her to send her 68 
ideas on how to slow traffic to him. 69 

Chloe Harris: Reiterated Ms. Stepp’s concerns about the speed of traffic on South Stream Road 70 
and cited her personal experience of nearly being hit by a speeding car.  Ms. Jenkins: Also 71 
encouraged her and others to send their ideas for a solution to the speed to Mr. Hurd.   72 

5. ECDC UPDATE 73 

 Jack Rossiter-Munley did the following presentation: 74 

 ECDC - the Ethiopian Community Development Council - is one of the 10 agencies for 75 
refugee resettlement throughout the United States. 76 

 Their Vermont offices are in Brattleboro and Bennington. 77 
 A person is a refugee if they are forced to leave their country involuntarily due to the 78 

threat of war, persecution, or violence.  79 
 Prior to leaving they have gone through an intense international process to be 80 

designated as a refugee by the United Nations before coming to the United States. 81 
 This process involves security and background checking followed by another round of 82 

security and background checking when it has been decided what country they will be 83 
going to. 84 

 The first refugees came to Bennington in 2021 for resettlement via ECDC and the 85 
volunteers from the Bennington County Open Arms Committee. 86 

 The Town of Bennington was designated as a resettlement site in October 2022 and the 87 
Bennington ECDC Office opened in February 2023 with direct resettlement beginning in 88 
July 2023. 89 

 Since July 2023 we have had 14 people come to Bennington (2 have moved to Virginia 90 
to be close to family), a family of 6 tomorrow, and 1 more in early September.   91 

 Most are Afghan and some are Congolese. 92 
 Even though there is government involvement, resettling is a community effort. 93 
 The main focus of resettling is within the first 90 days to see that they have a warm 94 

welcome, a place to stay, and be on a path to independence within the community. 95 
 Housing is our top issue - as it is with everyone in Bennington - and we do much work in 96 

setting up the apartments for their arrival which includes furnishings, appropriately 97 
cultural food in the pantry, and an appropriately cultural hot meal for when they step in 98 
the door. 99 



4 
 

 We have shared a list of what the State has determined must be in an apartment, as 100 
well as, a list of what is not mandatory, but helpful, of commonly used daily items.  Cash 101 
donations are also accepted to purchase items that cannot be donated second hand. 102 

 We also have a list of people called the Mattress Squad who may be able to donate a 103 
new mattress or the dollars for us to get one.   104 

 We then have the refugees sign up for services from our many partners, enroll in levels 105 
of education as needed, and find a job that matches their skills.  Some were doctors, 106 
lawyers, carpenters, cooks, bakers, and business people in their homeland. 107 

 Each refugee is given $1,075 to use for food, rent, and other necessities until they start 108 
working.   109 

 We are always working for resettlement to become a part of the community for the 110 
refugees, as well as, all community members.  We had a gathering at the Bennington 111 
Free Library where refugees shared their stories and much culturally appropriate food 112 
was served.  The Library has been very active in many ways to welcome the refugees, 113 
including a line of books in Dari. 114 

 If interested in this effort, contact jrossitermunley@ecdcus.org . 115 

Board comments/questions answered by Mr. Rossiter-Munley: 116 

Mr. Woods: Where does the “Ethiopian” come from in the ECDC? It goes back to the origin of 117 
the ECDC when most of the refugees were from Ethiopia.  In the future, the acronym will remain 118 
the same but stand for something else. 119 

Mr. Woods: Do you still see Ethiopian refugees? Some are still coming to southern Vermont but 120 
not to Bennington at this time. 121 

Ms. Conner: We must remember that although the refugees are glad to be here, their 122 
preference would be to be in their homeland.  The whole process must be “traumatizing” to 123 
them.  Most of the refugees still have friends and family in Afghanistan that they may support 124 
and are concerned about.   125 

Ms. Conner: Do the refugees now consider the United States their permanent home or do they 126 
hope to go back to Afghanistan? It varies from person to person and they may not be able to 127 
think that far ahead when they arrive.   128 

6. MANAGER’S REPORT 129 

 Mr. Hurd did the following report. 130 

VLCT Annual Meeting -  131 

 Jim Carroll moved and Ed Woods seconded to appoint the Town Manager as the 132 
voting delegate for the Town of Bennington at the VLCT Annual Meeting on September 26, 133 
2023.  The motion carried with Sarah Perrin absent. 134 



5 
 

 We will be releasing the report on the police website that shows our progress on the 33 135 
tasks with 24-25 recommendations made by the International Association of Chiefs of Police 136 
(IACP). 137 

 The Better Bennington Corporation (BBC) will be awarded a $25,000 grant from the 138 
Downtown Vibrancy Fund.  This requires a Letter of Support from the Select Board that will be 139 
available at the Town Office for a majority of the Select Board members to sign tomorrow.    140 

7. UPCOMING AGENDAS 141 

September 11, 2023 - Benn Hi Update Presentation 142 

September 11, 2023 - Department of Health Update 143 

September 25, 2023 - Housing for Those in Motels 144 

September 25, 2023 or October 9, 2023 - Skate Park Update 145 

8. OTHER BUSINESS 146 

 Ms. Conner: The Rec Center is currently closed for their annual maintenance and will 147 
reopen on September 11, 2023. 148 

 Mr. Woods: Today is the 45th Anniversary of Bennington Project Independence 149 
providing adult day services to the area. 150 

 Mr. Woods: Will be attending the Bennington Rescue Squad Finance Meeting this week. 151 

 Mr. Woods: Was asked by a Benmont Avenue resident to ask the Select Board if there 152 
could be additional signage for those turning left into the vegetable stand on Benmont Avenue.  153 
He will forward this e-mail to Mr. Hurd. 154 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 155 
    A. PERSONNEL 156 
    B. CONTRACTS 157 

At 7:05pm, Ed Woods moved and Jim Carroll seconded that the meeting was 158 
adjourned finding that an Executive Session be held on Personnel and Contracts as premature 159 
public knowledge would place a person involved in the subject matter at a substantial 160 
disadvantage.  No action will be taken when going back into Open Session.  The motion 161 
carried with Sarah Perrin absent. 162 

 163 

Respectfully submitted,  164 

Nancy H. Lively  165 

Secretary 166 



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 1 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  330895  *BURKE, BARBARA M          09/01/23   09/01/23    Tax Credit Refund                    258.41   01-1200.000

  330896  *CHRISTOPHER OLDHAM        09/06/23   09/06/23    Reimburse Repairs                    149.95   02-5100.485

  330897  *COLLEEN HARRINGTON        09/05/23   09/05/23    Tax Credit Refund                    238.72   01-1200.000

  330898  *DUANE BENTLEY JR          09/01/23   09/01/23    Tax Credit Refund                    196.85   01-1200.000

  330899  *HAROLD & LINDA VLACH      08/28/23   08/28/23    Tax Credit Refund                    214.94   01-1200.000

  330900  *MYRA OR ALEXANDRA GRAVES  08/31/23   08/31/23    Tax Credit Refund                    172.18   01-1200.000

  330901  *PATRICIA LAKE             08/31/23   08/31/23    Tax Credit Refund                     98.05   01-1200.000

  330902  *SAUSVILLE, SYLVIA         09/01/23   09/01/23    Tax Credit Refund                    644.77   01-1200.000

  330903  *WEBB, KAREN M             09/05/23   09/05/23    Tax Credit Refund                    723.77   01-1200.000

  330904  AAA POLICE SUPPLY          08/24/23   08/24/23    Ammunition                         8,091.30   01-4130.210

                                     08/04/23   29773       Blackington Flag Badges            2,996.00   01-4100.190

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK     11,087.30

  330905  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS         09/06/23   09/06/23    Fleet Parts                        2,351.43   02-5330.220

  330906  ALLIED AUTO PARTS OF BENN  08/28/23   587750      Ait Filter for Blower                 32.99   42-5480.210

                                     08/18/23   587527      Oil Filter                            19.99   41-5920.220

                                     08/21/23   587584      Air Hose, Misc                        20.98   41-5920.220

                                     08/22/23   587588      Service & Air HoseFitting             10.98   41-5920.220

                                     08/30/23   587828      Switches                              39.98   41-5920.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        124.92

  330907  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES,   08/27/23   16NCG1DGY6HQWhiteboard 48x34 in                  161.80   01-9520.850

                                     08/24/23   1XTQCDHDD6WFSupplies                              88.24   02-5120.230

                                     08/25/23   14HRLXP9LCTQParts                                 18.10   02-5120.230

                                     09/04/23   1VRK7V61RW46VTech Cordless Phones                 50.56   01-4110.210

                                     09/01/23   199FFCL6DPC6Mildew Remover                        69.98   42-5480.680

                                     08/30/23   13R44QGKN6NKDriveShaft&ChainsawBlade              22.20   02-5330.210

                                                                                                  21.20   02-5330.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        432.08

  330908  AT HOOSICK, LLC            08/25/23   X40501006701Fitting Elbow Pipe                     9.67   02-5330.220

                                     08/29/23   C40501006701Credit                                -9.67   02-5330.220

                                     08/22/23   X40500999601Parts                                 84.19   02-5330.220

                                     08/29/23   X40501013101Parts                                 43.29   02-5330.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        127.48

  330909  AT&T                       08/12/23   08/12/23    911 Long Distance Line                61.19   01-4140.340

  330910  AT&T MOBILITY              08/11/23   636X08192023Cell Phone                            53.14   01-3650.340

                                                                                                  44.15   01-4100.850



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 2 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                                  44.15   01-3710.340

                                                                                                 591.82   01-4140.340

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        733.26

  330911  B & G RESTAURANT SUPPLY,   08/31/23   292007-IN   Ice Machine -Fire Dept             4,691.82   03-4570.230

  330912  BCIC                       08/29/23   6041        Stormwater Permit Fee                276.80   02-5100.720

  330913  BEARCOM                    08/15/23   5601147     Antenna Polyphaser                   804.90   03-4540.680

  330914  BENNINGTON COALITION FOR   08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     8,500.00   01-8000.018

  330915  BENNINGTON COOLING & HEAT  08/15/23   I8881       Repair-Clean Ice Machine             356.50   02-5170.560

  330916  BENNINGTON COUNTY REGIONA  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                    11,000.00   01-8000.002

  330917  BENNINGTON FREE LIBRARY    08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                   170,980.00   01-8000.004

  330918  BENNINGTON POOL & HEARTH   08/25/23   130076      Chlorine Tablets/Eng Oil             210.80   01-3710.220

  330919  BENNINGTON PROJECT INDEPE  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     5,500.00   01-8000.003

  330920  BENNINGTON RESCUE SQUAD    08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                    75,620.00   01-8000.020

  330921  BIG BOYS TOYS OF THE NORT  08/24/23   623537      Tire Repair for Tipper                20.00   42-5420.680

  330922  CAPITAL TRACTOR INC.       08/30/23   PG71176     Mower Deck                         2,336.52   01-7180.680

  330923  CASELLA WASTE SYSTEMS, IN  08/28/23   739946      Trash                                229.31   01-5430.560

                                     08/21/23   739914      Trash                                158.72   42-5480.560

                                                                                                  96.83   01-5430.560

                                                                                                  74.97   02-5120.560

                                     08/21/23   739918      Trash - N Benn                        30.00   01-5430.560

                                     08/28/23   739949      Trash - N Benn                        15.00   01-5430.560

                                     08/21/23   739920      Trash - MAU                          136.41   01-5430.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        741.24

  330924  CDW GOVERNMENT INC         08/25/23   LN87945     Computer Items                        61.00   01-3300.230

                                                                                                  44.08   01-3300.230

                                                                                                  27.10   01-3300.230

                                                                                                  37.89   01-3300.230

                                                                                                  27.10   42-5400.230

                                                                                                  44.08   42-5400.230

                                                                                                 284.91   42-5400.230

                                     08/30/23   LQ19078     2.5 HDD Enclosure                     21.78   01-3300.230

                                     08/29/23   LP76904     Computer Items                        31.19   01-3650.230

                                                                                                 119.99   01-3650.230

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        699.12

  330925  CINTAS                     05/12/23   4155295949  Cleaning Supplies - PD               282.83   01-4170.210



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 3 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                     03/03/23   4148279166  Cleaning Supplies - Rec               45.97   01-7170.210

                                     07/13/23   4161428863  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     07/27/23   4162814716  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     08/03/23   4163515254  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     08/10/23   4164222388  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     08/17/23   4164917335  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     08/24/23   4165626668  Uniforms - Highway                   235.40   02-5100.190

                                     08/30/23   4166201389  Uniforms - Highway                   233.58   02-5100.190

                                     07/13/23   4161428669  Uniforms - Water                      11.16   41-5900.190

                                     07/27/23   4162814526  Uniforms - Water                     107.89   41-5900.190

                                     08/03/23   4163515008  Uniforms - Water                       9.76   41-5900.190

                                     08/10/23   4164222309  Uniforms - Water                       9.76   41-5900.190

                                     08/17/23   4164917129  Uniforms - Water                       9.76   41-5900.190

                                     08/24/23   4165626447  Uniforms - Water                       9.76   41-5900.190

                                     08/30/23   4166201319  Uniforms - Water                       9.76   41-5900.190

                                     07/13/23   4161428652  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     07/27/23   4162814427  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     08/03/23   4163515072  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     08/10/23   4164222267  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     08/17/23   4164917100  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     08/24/23   4165626483  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                     08/30/23   4166201383  Uniforms - Wastewater                 12.24   42-5400.190

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      2,219.21

  330927  COEO SOLUTIONS, LLC        08/21/23   1100932     Cell Modems for PS                   101.04   42-5400.340

  330928  COMCAST                    08/23/23   08/23/23    8773 50 030 0171680                   56.54   01-7900.340

                                     08/18/23   08/18/23    8773 50 030 0057681                  373.95   03-4500.340

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        430.49

  330929  CURTIS LUMBER COMPANY, IN  08/23/23   2308-196107 Lumber                               678.00   01-7170.220

                                                                                                 230.88   01-7160.220

                                     08/17/23   2308-170202 Siding for Woodford PS               111.48   41-5910.680

                                     08/30/23   2308-230890 Insulation                           135.78   01-7170.680

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      1,156.14

  330930  DE LAGE LANDEN             08/17/23   80679337    Copier Lease                         240.00   01-4100.650

  330931  DIOTTE, KEITH              08/30/23   08/30/23    Expense Rpt                          100.43   01-4130.742

  330932  DISPLAY SALES              08/31/23   INV0306     Holiday Decorations                5,001.50   01-8043.440

  330933  ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION I  08/21/23   2316-08/21/2Burgess Rd PRV                     3,000.00   41-0870.000

  330934  ENDYNE, INC.               08/23/23   459228      Colilert                              40.00   41-5980.560

                                     08/30/23   459955      Colilert                              80.00   41-5980.560

                                     08/24/23   459344      WW Analysis                          296.00   42-5480.560

                                     08/30/23   459907      WW Analysis                          296.00   42-5480.560

                                     08/30/23   459980      WW Analysis                          296.00   42-5480.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      1,008.00

  330935  F.W. WEBB COMPANY          08/17/23   82003773    Cement Hydraulic 10#can               40.68   02-5200.220



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 4 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                     08/23/23   82076800    Water Key                              8.13   01-7160.220

                                     08/25/23   82107761    Supplies                              11.10   41-5940.210

                                     08/18/23   81974378    Burgess Rd PRV                       246.27   41-0870.000

                                     08/23/23   82072716    Supplies                              82.65   41-5940.210

                                     08/30/23   82162070    Parts-Sidewalk Sweeper                30.81   02-5330.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        419.64

  330936  FERGUSON WATERWORKS #576   08/23/23   1178037     Sewer parts                        2,207.41   42-5440.210

                                     08/24/23   1180047     Gripper Plug                         111.72   42-5440.210

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      2,319.13

  330937  FERRARA, DANIEL J          08/30/23   08/30/23    Expense Rpt                          130.50   01-4130.742

  330938  FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY  08/29/23   5749543     Lab Supplies                         124.41   42-5480.210

                                     08/28/23   5710563     Lab Supplies                         673.53   42-5480.210

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        797.94

  330939  FORT MILLER COMPANY INC    08/25/23   158340      Warning Plates                       660.00   02-5200.560

                                     08/25/23   158340-1    Burgess/Main PRV                   3,240.00   41-0870.000

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      3,900.00

  330940  GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICE  08/30/23   2331947     Annual Dues                          190.00   01-3410.400

  330941  GRAINGER                   08/15/23   9805044691  Shower Curtains                       79.00   01-7170.230

  330942  GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP  08/29/23   08/29/23    Electric - Benn Hi                   621.34   01-7800.760

                                     08/30/23   08/30/23    Electric                         -19,112.51   01-1106.000

                                                                                                 108.92   02-5280.760

                                                                                               2,735.12   02-5170.760

                                                                                              17,029.35   42-5480.760

                                                                                                 263.33   02-5130.760

                                     08/30/23   08/30/23-1  Electric                           2,243.91   01-4170.760

                                                                                             -15,717.96   01-1107.000

                                                                                               5,557.54   01-7170.760

                                                                                                 902.70   01-3710.760

                                                                                               3,708.88   41-5980.760

                                                                                               1,650.38   01-7970.760

                                                                                               4,777.35   41-5910.760

                                                                                               1,304.25   03-4570.760

                                     08/30/23   08/30/23-2  Electric                              24.34   42-5480.760

                                                                                               3,144.00   41-5910.760

                                     08/29/23   08/29/23-1  Electric                             201.48   41-5980.760

                                                                                                 525.13   41-5910.760

                                                                                                 332.40   42-5480.760

                                     08/29/23   08/29/23-3  Electric                             187.87   01-7170.760

                                                                                                  55.76   01-3720.760

                                                                                                 439.19   01-7160.760

                                                                                                 179.87   01-3710.760

                                                                                                 306.25   40-4420.760

                                     08/29/23   08/29/23-4  Electric                             556.74   02-5130.760



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 5 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                              10,326.61   02-5280.760

                                                                                                  71.64   02-5170.760

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK     22,423.88

  330943  GREEN MOUNTAIN RSVP        08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     2,750.00   01-8000.010

  330944  GREEN MOUNTAIN TRAFFIC CO  08/29/23   BENN082523  PRV Install Main St                1,736.15   41-0870.000

                                     09/04/23   BENN090123  Burgess/Main PRV                     703.20   41-0870.000

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      2,439.35

  330945  GREENMAN-PEDERSEN, INC.    08/08/23   368841      Benn STP Bike (26)s                  689.13   01-7130.440

                                     08/30/23   370804      Benn STP Bike (26)s                3,061.62   01-7130.440

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      3,750.75

  330946  GSS FIRE EXTINGUISHER      08/24/23   7395        Inspec/Refill @ Fire Dept             54.15   03-4570.560

  330947  H L FUEL CO., INC.         09/01/23   1704413     273827 - Fire house                  900.13   03-4570.770

                                     08/24/23   1704092     273825 - TO                          505.95   01-3710.770

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      1,406.08

  330948  H L PROPANE CO. INC.       08/25/23   1704070     4527 - Rec Ctr                     1,127.48   01-7170.770

  330949  HACH COMPANY               08/28/23   13716372    Variable Pipette& Tips                46.45   42-5480.210

                                     08/25/23   13714959    Variable Pipette & Tips              482.00   42-5480.210

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        528.45

  330950  HAYDEN PLUMBING & HEATING  08/15/23   6836        Condensate Pump @ PD                 545.00   01-4170.680

  330951  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE  08/16/23   4010901     Supplies                              18.97   41-5940.210

                                     08/28/23   2144155     Ryobi Elec SurfaceCleaner            182.97   01-7170.230

                                     09/02/23   7023067     Supplies                              49.50   42-5480.210

                                     08/22/23   8022194     Concrete Mix                          19.92   01-7160.220

                                     08/21/23   9022156     Burgess Rd PRV                       120.55   41-0870.000

                                     08/22/23   8011863     Burgess Rd PRV                        78.34   41-0870.000

                                     08/24/23   6012179     Burgess Rd PRV                       390.46   41-0870.000

                                     08/29/23   1022627-1   Tread Tape                            53.96   02-5330.210

                                     08/28/23   2012824     Drill Bits                           172.51   02-5330.210

                                     08/28/23   2012770     Posts for Orchard Road               297.80   02-5110.220

                                     08/28/23   2624672     Grant St Hose                         49.98   02-5170.210

                                     08/31/23   9093404     Weed Wacker Trim Line                 34.47   02-5120.220

                                     08/30/23   22745       Grab Bar/Tray Set/Scraper            108.89   01-7170.220

                                     08/29/23   1022616     Tile Repair/Duster                    44.80   01-7170.220

                                     08/31/23   9013214     Pine Boards/Drill Bits               288.87   01-7170.680

                                     08/31/23   9093436     Satin White Filler                    29.50   01-7170.680

                                     08/30/23   104258      Kitchen Cabinets @ Rec             1,436.00   01-7170.680

                                     08/30/23   9900987     Kitchen Cabinet-Refund               -43.00   01-7170.680

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      3,334.49

  330953  J G MCCULLOUGH FREE LIBRA  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                    14,200.00   01-8000.006

  330954  JGS RECYCLING & HAULING,   08/18/23   2846        Reclaim & Recycle                    407.00   01-5430.560



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 6 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  330955  JOHNS BUILDING SUPPLY CO.  08/28/23   16824/1     Grout/Mortor for MH                  560.00   42-5440.210

  330956  JOSEPH BROWN SMALL ENGINE  08/18/23   10022       Carb Repair Kit Service              239.89   02-5330.220

  330957  LIVELY, NANCY              08/28/23   08/28/23    SB Meeting Minutes                   114.75   01-3700.560

  330958  MARKOWSKI EXCAVATING INC   08/30/23   PYMT# 28    Participating STP (26)s           12,315.97   01-7130.440

  330959  MICHAEL J BAKER            09/05/23   09/05/23    Park Services August                 225.00   01-7160.560

  330960  MITCHELL TEES & SIGNS, IN  08/28/23   84768       4RecruitsClothing/Academy            694.00   01-4100.190

  330961  MONUMENT ELECTRIC COMPANY  08/07/23   12394       Misc Elec Work @ FD                2,640.00   03-4570.810

                                     09/01/23   12409       Repair Fire Alarm PD                 125.00   01-4170.680

                                     08/31/23   12410       Landscape Lights @ Splash             75.00   01-7160.680

                                     08/31/23   12411       12 LED in Weight Rm                1,795.00   01-7160.680

                                     08/31/23   12412       Sensor Mens Bath-Willow              186.00   01-7170.680

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      4,821.00

  330962  MORSE REPAIR INC.          08/18/23   46287       Hydraulic Couplings                   41.68   02-5330.220

  330963  MSK ATTORNEYS              08/31/23   51500       Benn Hi Redevelopment              2,226.50   01-7800.560

  330964  NEMRC                      08/24/23   53362       Disaster Recovery                    796.68   01-3700.560

  330965  NIXON, ROBERT              08/28/23   08/28/23    WW License & Fee                     275.00   42-5400.720

                                                                                                  20.00   42-5400.720

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        295.00

  330966  NORTH BENNINGTON HYDROELE  09/06/23   09/06/23    Hydro                             15,089.24   01-1107.000

  330967  NORTHEAST MUNICIPAL LLC    08/24/23   8741        Mechanic Supplies                  1,266.18   02-5330.230

                                     08/31/23   8766        4 Square Shovels                     242.44   42-5440.230

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      1,508.62

  330968  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC.  07/21/23   5684-128832 Return Pipe-Inter                    -27.69   02-5330.220

                                     08/21/23   5684-135239 Wiper Blades/Taurus #7                20.90   01-4180.680

                                     08/15/23   5684-133961 Fant Glass                            23.44   02-5330.220

                                     08/28/23   5684-136652 Megacrimps                            34.21   02-5330.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK         50.86

  330969  OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY      08/14/23   100401282642Maint. Service                       407.09   03-4570.680

                                     08/14/23   10000115569 Logistics & Fuel Impact              100.00   01-4170.560

                                     08/14/23   10000115565 Sr Ctr Service Contract              100.00   01-7970.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        607.09

  330970  PARAMOUNT ASSESSMENT GROU  08/24/23   117         Polygraph                            350.00   01-4100.560

                                     08/24/23   116         Polygraph                            350.00   01-4100.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        700.00

  330971  PAULSON WOOD PRODUCTS, IN  08/24/23   082423      Lumber/ReplaceNinjaBridge          1,624.70   01-7130.680



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 7 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  330972  PECKHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.   08/26/23   1054847     County St Paving                   3,847.20   02-5200.560

                                     08/26/23   1054849     Burgess/Main PRV-Stone               315.53   41-0870.000

                                     08/26/23   1054848     Burgess/Main PRV-Stone               622.13   41-0870.000

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      4,784.86

  330973  PELTON TOOLS               08/28/23   82823121469 Ford Wheel Bearing Puller            749.95   02-5330.225

  330974  PETE'S TIRE BARNS, INC.    08/24/23   62826       Tire Replacement                     611.68   41-5920.220

  330975  PETTY CASH - BENNINGTON P  08/31/23   08/31/23    NNO & Prisoner Meals                   1.73   01-4170.560

                                                                                                   9.91   01-4170.560

                                                                                                  24.91   01-9534.850

                                                                                                   2.82   01-4170.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK         39.37

  330976  PETTY CASH - BENNINGTON T  09/05/23   09/05/23    Postage & DMV                         94.00   01-4180.830

                                                                                                  64.41   42-5400.360

                                                                                                  64.41   41-5900.360

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        222.82

  330977  PITTSFIELD LAWN & TRACTOR  08/23/23   352152      Mower Parts                          423.92   01-7180.220

  330978  PRUE ELECTRIC              08/13/23   1561        Bowen Rd Outlets                     414.00   02-5170.680

                                     09/03/23   1571        Burgess/Main PRV-Electric          3,260.00   41-0870.000

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      3,674.00

  330979  R C PEMBROKE & SONS INC    08/31/23   2022-2097   Mulch for TO                         183.96   01-3710.220

  330980  R.K. MILES, INC.           08/24/23   319857/1    Windows,Sash&Screens @ PD            916.96   01-9506.850

  330981  RCS CONSULTING, INC.       09/01/23   21323       Managed Services                     461.65   02-5100.560

                                                                                               1,538.83   01-3700.560

                                                                                                 153.87   03-4500.560

                                                                                                 461.65   41-5900.560

                                                                                                 461.65   42-5400.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      3,077.65

  330982  REYNOLDS & SONS            08/22/23   3428720     Repair Disc & Gasket                 104.00   03-4580.680

  330983  SANITARY EQUIPMENT CO., I  08/28/23   01-86659    Suction Tube                         451.67   42-5420.220

  330984  SECURSHRED                 08/23/23   433897      Shredding                             22.00   01-3700.560

                                     08/23/23   433852      Shredding                             22.00   01-4100.560

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK         44.00

  330985  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY   08/24/23   4081-6      Paint & Supplies                     123.63   01-7160.220

                                     08/31/23   4291-1      Paint & Supplies                      89.15   01-7170.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        212.78

  330986  SOUTHWESTERN VT COUNCIL O  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     3,750.00   01-8000.011



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 8 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  330987  STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT    08/28/23   761292806901Bookshelves                          266.40   01-3710.230

                                     08/21/23   761364672001Copy Paper                           207.64   01-3700.200

                                     08/22/23   73781535390112 pk - 1" Binders                    39.19   01-3700.200

                                     08/23/23   761372270302Office Supplies                       11.29   01-3430.200

                                     08/23/23   761372270301Office Supplies                       68.98   01-3430.200

                                     08/29/23   761412127401Wall Calendars 2024                   53.08   42-5400.200

                                     08/28/23   761407878401WWTP Office Supplies                 738.57   42-5400.200

                                     08/30/23   761424496001DVD-R's & Office Supplies             41.10   01-4100.200

                                                                                                 123.16   01-4110.210

                                     08/30/23   761424496002Address Labels                        27.19   03-4500.200

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK      1,576.60

  330988  STATE OF VERMONT-WATER QU  08/30/23   69717       Operating Fees Apr-June23          8,212.75   41-5900.720

  330989  SUNRISE FAMILY RESOURCE C  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     5,000.00   01-8000.019

  330990  SYNCARPHA BENNINGTON SOLA  08/31/23   255582      Solar                             17,086.32   01-1106.000

  330991  TARA SCHATZ                08/31/23   INV-000201  VBH-Social Media,News Let            220.00   01-3650.350

  330992  TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLA  08/24/23   71922       Recovery Strap/Rope                  160.96   01-7160.220

                                     08/21/23   71113       Saw Pin                                2.38   02-5330.220

                                     08/30/23   73640       Seat for Paver                       249.99   02-5330.220

                                     08/30/23   73638       Grease Hose Guard                     21.99   02-5330.210

                                     08/30/23   73694       Toggle Handle Paver                    8.99   02-5330.220

                                     08/30/23   741310      UBolt for Sweeper                     11.16   02-5330.220

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        455.47

  330993  TUTORIAL CENTER            08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                     5,000.00   01-8000.012

  330994  VCJTC / VT POLICE ACADEMY  07/07/23   18966       Training                              11.00   01-4110.212

  330995  VERIZON WIRELESS           08/23/23   9942781339  Broadband Srv.                       200.05   01-4140.340

  330996  VERMONT STATE TREASURER'S  09/05/23   09/05/23    Dog Licenses 5/1-8/31                935.00   01-2120.000

  330997  VISITING NURSE ASSOC. & H  08/31/23   08/31/23    Agency Funding                    10,800.00   01-8000.001

  330998  VLCT PACIF                 08/28/23   REN230041-Q4W/C & Property                    27,387.00   01-4100.483

                                                                                              20,602.00   02-5100.483

                                                                                               4,508.00   41-5900.483

                                                                                                 584.00   03-4500.483

                                                                                               4,508.00   42-5400.483

                                                                                               3,102.00   01-3700.483

                                                                                              13,543.00   42-5400.480

                                                                                              23,311.00   01-3700.480

                                                                                               8,904.00   41-5900.480

                                                                                              30,124.25   01-4100.480

                                                                                               3,772.00   01-7170.480



09/06/23                                         Town of Bennington Accounts Payable                                     Page 9 of 9

12:30 pm                                            Check Warrant Report # 8

                                         By Vendor For Check Acct 01 Checks 330895 To 331002

  Check   Vendor                     Invoice    Invoice     Invoice                              Amount   Account

  Number  Company                    Date       Number      Description                            Paid   Number

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                               4,824.00   03-4500.480

                                                                                              17,625.00   02-5100.480

                                                                                                 992.00   01-7900.480

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK    163,786.25

  330999  VMERS - RETIREMENT DIVISI  09/04/23   09/04/23    Unfunded Liability                54,326.86   41-5900.156

                                                                                              69,848.82   42-5400.156

                                                                                             512,224.68   01-3700.156

                                                                                             139,697.64   02-5100.156

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK    776,098.00

  331000  W & R FENCING, LLC         08/23/23   1043        Re-Install Fence Cemetary            600.00   01-5520.560

  331001  WALTS AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE   08/28/23   10612       Towing Fees/Car#12                    65.00   01-4110.560

  331002  WELLS FARGO VENDOR FINANC  08/22/23   5026413133  Copier Lease                         104.00   01-3700.650

                                     08/19/23   5026381874  Copier Lease                         225.00   01-3700.650

                                                                              TOTAL CHECK        329.00

                                                                                         --------------

                                                                 Report Total              1,424,946.69

                                                                                         ==============

           FOR THE SELECTBOARD

           _____________________________         __________________________________

           Chair                                 Vice Chair

          To the Treasurer of the Town of Bennington,

           We Hereby certify that there is due to the several persons whose names

          are listed hereon the sum against each name and that there are good

          and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments aggregating $ *1,424,946.69

          Let this be your order for the payments of these amounts.



















































































 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 
 
 

ACTION 
 
UCS Superhero 5K road closures        Scheduled for Saturday November 4th, UCS is requesting 
permissions to close the following streets from 8am until 10:30 am (at the latest): Main Street 
from Benmont to Branch and Gage Street from Bradford to Safford. UCS staff, the staff from the 
Y, and the BPD will work closely to ensure the event is run efficiently and without too much 
disruption to residents and traffic. 
 
Action requested       Motion to close the roads as noted above.    
 
   
 
                                                       INFORMATIONAL   
 

Willow Park Playground Equipment Closure      The replacement equipment has arrived. The 
installers are in Town. If all goes well, the playground will be fully open once again by 
September 16th. 

 

Brush at Transfer Station         At the next meeting, September 25th, I will be prepared to 
recommend a $10 per load brush fee for all residential customers; commercial customers will 
change from a per ton fee to $30 per load. Last year, charging only commercial haulers, we 
raised just over $7,800 to cover the costs to chip which have been running in the $10,000 - 
$15,000+ range depending on the cost of fuel, etc. Furthermore, some haulers attempt to evade 
the charge by arguing the load comes from their own property. Using a per ton fee slows the line 
and arguing with commercial users creates anxiety for the scale house operators. By charging 
everyone a simple tip fee, it should increase our income while reducing strife at the site. We are 
assuming 1000 customers each year bring brush to the site. Only 130 commercial loads were 
registered last year. If we find that the number of customers using the brush pile is significantly 
more than our estimate, we will reduce the fee. Most transfer stations charge a fee for brush. 

 

                                                                FOLLOW UP 

 

The Community Development and Permitting/Planning Reports are attached. 



Community Development Report: September 5, 2023 
Shannon Barsotti 

Recreation: 

YMCA program planning: 

The Bennington Community Center (Rec Center) pool schedule and programs for adults and youth are 
updated regularly on the Rec Center Facebook page and town’s website. Sign ups for fall youth sports, 
after school programs, and adult fitness classes are underway now.  

Walloomsac Riverwalk Improvement Project:  
 
The Town received a $200,000 Downtown Transportation Fund grant for improvements along the 
Riverwalk, which include widening the pathway and adding lighting. The Improvements to the Riverwalk 
will also include a connection to the new Rail Trail.  
 
Appalachian Trail Community: 

I was part of the leadership committee that organized the AT Community Trailfest on July 29 at the 
Bennington Community Center. The event had a good turnout of hikers and community members 
learning about local outdoor recreation resources and enjoying free food provided by the Abbey Group. 
The Bennington AT Community is a volunteer run group committed to raising awareness of the 
Appalachian Trail in Southwestern Vermont.  

Vermont Begins Here: 

Eight Oh Two Marketing is continuing the digital marketing campaign to promote Bennington. The VBH 
blog post for September promoted the Chamber’s Garlic Town U.S.A. festival, local farmstands to visit, 
upcoming musical events at the Bennington Museum and Little City Cider Co, and other downtown 
events in September.  

Bennington Fair Food Initiative: 

The Bennington Fair Food Initiative, including the Bennington Community Market, Southwest Tech, 
Bennington College, and the Vermont Veteran’s Home, was funded with a 2.2 million earmark in the 
government spending bill that passed at the end of 2022 (nominated by Senator Peter Welch). The 
funds will be administered through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and will 
flow through the Town of Bennington to subgrantees similar to the process of Community Development 
block grants. I have received the grant agreement from HUD and am working through the program 
budget and planning with program partners. The goals of the initiative are connecting partners in the 
local food system and growing jobs in the food sector.  

Community Development Block Grants:  

The Vermont Community Development program awarded a grant of $386,190 to the Town of 
Bennington to support the Hale Resources affordable housing development at Benn High. Shires 
Housing has also received VCDP funding through the Town for two recovery housing projects on North 
Street and Gage Street. I submit paperwork required for each grant agreement and subgrant agreement 
along with progress reports on the projects. At the end of the year, I also submit financial reports to the 
state of Vermont on past HUD loans that have been granted to the Town or sub-grantees.  

 



Community Development Report: September 5, 2023 
Shannon Barsotti 

Benn Hi Redevelopment: 
 
I am on the team with other town staff, and we are meeting weekly to plan the redevelopment of Benn 
High. The Town hired Goldstone Architecture to create conceptual plans and we are working closely 
with Hale Resources, who will be the developer of the overall project. I am researching grants to help 
support the redevelopment of the building and identifying partners for the community spaces. My 
application for Congressionally Directed Spending for the Benn High redevelopment was nominated for 
$1 million from Representative Becca Balint’s office. This past month we met with Southwestern 
Vermont Council on Aging, the Senior Center, and Meals on Wheels to finalize the design plans for the 
senior spaces. We also participated in a Benn High site visit with state funders of the redevelopment 
project.  
 
Health Impact Assessment of the Benn Hi Redevelopment 
 

Zak Hale and I worked with Rory Price and Megan Herrington from the Vermont Department of Health 
on their Health Impact Assessment of the Benn Hi redevelopment. The assessment process included the 
collection and analysis of secondary data, as well as community engagement efforts to gather 
qualitative information about the health needs of the community and the potential impact of the 
redevelopment. The completed assessment is on the Town’s website (under Benn Hi Redevelopment) 
and the Health Department will be presenting its findings at the September 11th Select Board meeting.  

Vermont Council on Rural Development: 
 
VCRD asked me to join their board as a local government representative and I attended their Vermont 
Community Leadership Summit on August 15th at Vermont Technical College in Randolph.  
 
Housing Committee: 
 
Zak Hale has organized a regular meeting of various professionals working to improve the housing crisis 
in Bennington, including representatives from BCRC, the Health Department, Bennington County 
Coalition for the Homeless, Neighborworks, Bennington Housing Authority, Shires Housing, Maple Leaf 
Realty, and the Sherriff’s department.  
 
Housing Crisis Team/Project Alliance:  
 
I have been meeting with the Housing Crisis Team that grew out of Project Alliance and is addressing the 
end of the motel voucher program. The team met to discuss options to create more immediate housing, 
such as converting a motel into longer term housing with social services embedded on site.  
 
Community Outreach:  

In the past month, I have met with the Benn Hi Redevelopment team, Hale Resources, Bennington 
Community Market, Bennington College’s CAPA program, Bennington Housing Committee, AT 
Community leadership committee, Meals on Meals, SW VT Council on Aging, Better Bennington 
Corporation, Eight Oh Two Marketing, SVHC VISTA Volunteer, and Project Alliance.  



Summary of Building Permits Issued

 August  2023

Construction Type Month to date Month to Date Volume Year to date Year to Date Volume

Permit Totals Permit Totals

Single Family Dwelling 0 $0.00 3 $750,000.00

Duplex 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Mobile Homes 1 $6,000.00 4 $271,818.00

Apartments 0 $0.00 1 $75,000.00

Apartment Renovations 0 $0.00 12 $1,880,752.00

Condominiums 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Residential Renovations 2 $80,000.00 16 $630,560.00

Residential Additions 0 $0.00 1 $80,000.00

Commercial Construction 1 $680,000.00 6 $3,212,509.00

Commercial Renovations 3 $470,000.00 22 $1,851,556.00

Industrial Construction 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Industrial Renovations 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Garages 0 $0.00 9 $317,960.00

Sheds 1 $5,000.00 17 $107,664.00

Decks / Porch 4 $75,300.00 19 $176,218.85

Institutions 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Signs 1 $1,200.00 13 $41,118.00

Use & Zoning 2 $700,000.00 9 $31,154,689.00

Subdivision 0 $0.00 6 $0.00

Home Occupation 1 $50.00 1 $50.00

Propane Tank/Storage Tank 0 $0.00 1 $320,000.00

Boilers/Furnaces/RTU's, A/C 0 $0.00 1 $185,000.00

Tents 1 $3,418.00 8 $25,733.00

Handicap Access/Ramps 0 $0.00 2 $9,178.00

Concreate Slabs 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Cell Towers/Communications 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

Solar Installations 3 $47,645.00 14 $716,072.20

Camps 1 $20,000.00 1 $20,000.00

Withdrawn 0 $0.00 3 $0.00

Demolition 4 $0.00 23 $0.00

Fire Supression 0 $0.00 4 $0.00

Sprinkler System 0 $0.00 1 $0.00

Exhaust Hood 0 $0.00 2 $0.00

Fire Alarm 0 $0.00 1 $0.00

Total 25 $2,088,613.00 200 $41,825,878.05



 12-Years At a Glance

Permit Totals Only

Month 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

January 12 11 5 8 15 10 5 6 5 11 15 16

February 7 6 7 15 8 5 7 5 8 9 10 12

March 31 13 12 10 14 19 11 13 9 19 22 18

April 31 18 22 27 14 15 15 23 11 29 33 24

May 27 38 20 23 19 27 23 24 19 23 29 36

June 32 20 19 21 19 10 14 12 25 16 21 35

July 24 33 29 47 16 29 30 28 12 16 20 35

August 30 21 29 20 18 25 25 16 27 16 28 25

September 21 32 27 22 21 21 23 26 9 14 23

October 38 30 21 28 9 19 20 20 17 29 17

November 10 16 11 12 8 16 11 8 15 19 19

December 18 18 7 10 5 8 11 11 5 10 12

 

Total 281 256 209 243 166 204 195 192 162 211 249

 

F:\Building & Zoning\Bridget\Permit totals\12 Year at a Glance



09/01/2023

10:28 am wleblanc
Town of Bennington Planning and Zoning

Page 1

Detailed Permit Report

BuildingPermit types included:

Approval status included: Granted

Occupancy status included: Any status

Decision dates included: Between 08/01/2023 and 08/31/2023

Permit
number Owner's name Permit type DecisionParcel number Fee paid

Applicant's nameLand Record Cert. of Occ. Cost of project
LocationBook and Pages 

23-057 ONORATO MARK & HOURAN AUDRA Building Granted 08/21/2023  06011700 140.00

20,000.00C.O. PendingMark Onorato & Audra Houran

CHAPEL RD

Construct A 24x28 Seasonal Camp

23-088 BISCEGLIA JR PAUL M Building Granted 08/03/2023  51532000 50.00

20,000.00C.O. PendingPaul Bisceglia Jr

104 SAFFORD ST

Exterior Renovation & Repairs

23-115 BRYANT STEVEN & LAUREN Building Granted 08/01/2023  24502100 523.00

80,000.00C.O. PendingSteven & Lauren Bryant

782 HARWOOD HILL RD

Construct A Kitchen Expansion (940 Sq-Ft)

23-129 TUTORIAL CENTER Building Granted 08/18/2023  50562500 1,543.00

350,000.00C.O. PendingTutorial Center (Sean-Marie Oller)

451 MAIN ST

Interior Renovations & Change of Use (Commercial Adult Learning/Tutorial Center)

23-140 CINELLI  TYLER R & LAUREN R Building Granted 08/02/2023  29502900 150.00

39,000.00C.O. PendingTyler & Lauren Cinelli

307 APPLE HILL RD

Demo Existing Deck & Build New 1,000 Sq-Ft Deck

23-141 LAMONTAGNE PAUL G & SUSAN B Building Granted 08/15/2023  23500300 25.00

23,585.00C.O. PendingFreedom Forever -  Matthew Markham

504 MATTESON RD

Install Rooftop Solar (18 Modules)

23-142 MURRAY JEFFREY K Building Granted 08/23/2023  51556400 52.00

5,000.00C.O. PendingJeffrey Murray

739 MAIN ST

Construct/Install A 8x40 Outdoor Storage Building

23-143 RICE PAUL & SUSAN LIFE ESTATE Building Granted 08/21/2023  26506703 54.00

23,000.00C.O. PendingPaul & Susan Rice

1499 EAST RD

Rebuild and Expand Existing Deck (360 Sq-Ft)

23-145 S K B W V ACQUISITION LLC Building Granted 08/24/2023  36512100 338.40

40,000.00C.O. PendingS K B W V Acquisition LLC - Travis Mears

220 NORTHSIDE DR

Interior Renovation (1,880 Sq-Ft)



09/01/2023

10:28 am wleblanc
Town of Bennington Planning and Zoning

Page 2

Detailed Permit Report

Permit
number Owner's name Permit type DecisionParcel number Fee paid

Applicant's nameLand Record Cert. of Occ. Cost of project
LocationBook and Pages 

23-146 ARGENTIERI DAVID M Building Granted 08/23/2023  50536600 50.00

50.00C.O. Not requiredDiane Argentieri

213 MAPLE ST

Home Occupation - Bakery

23-147 BENNINGTON LITTLE LEAGUE INC Building Granted 08/23/2023  44507100 1,999.92

680,000.00C.O. PendingGeoff Metcalfe

83 LITTLE LEAGUE RD

Construct 2 New Buildings: (1) Training Facility, (2) Maintenance & Bathroom Facility

23-148 STROHMAIER JOSEPH M & JOSEPH M II Building Granted 08/24/2023  12014101 161.80

6,000.00C.O. PendingJoseph Strohmaier & Joseph Strohmaier I

1856 MIDDLE POWNAL RD

Demo Existing Mobile Home & Install New Mobile An Addition (904 Sq-Ft)

23-149 BEAUMONT PAUL J & JULIE A Building Granted 08/24/2023  55502900 25.00

1,500.00C.O. PendingPower Guru LLC

199 WEEKS ST

Install Rooftop Solar - Single Panel Expansion

23-150 KOBELIA ROBERT & KRISTENA Building Granted 08/24/2023  07016400 25.00

22,560.00C.O. PendingSunrun

3015 WEST RD

Battery & Solar Install (Ground Mount)

23-151 RHODES PETER H & BIRKLAND CLAUDIA Building Granted 08/30/2023  24501000 165.20

9,100.00C.O. PendingPeter Rhodes & Claudia Birkland

88 SETTLERS RD

Construct A 20x20 Enclosed Patio & 18x34

23-152 WARD ASHLEY A Building Granted 08/29/2023  52534900 25.00

4,200.00C.O. PendingAshley Ward

102 OAKES ST

Construct A 10x10 Freestanding Deck

23-154 BECKER REAL ESTATE LLC Building Granted 08/30/2023  57511300 50.00

60,000.00C.O. PendingBecker Real Estate LLC

239 BEECH ST

Interior & Exterior Renovations/Repairs

23-155 RGN BENNINGTON HOLDINGS LLC Building Granted 08/29/2023  50517100 35.00

3,418.00C.O. Not requiredSouthwestern Vermont Chamber of

113 DEPOT ST

Install 4 Temporary Tents (1) 10x20 & (3) 20x30 (09/01/23-09/05/23)



09/01/2023

10:29 am wleblanc
Town of Bennington Planning and Zoning

Page 1

Detailed Permit Report

Local/CustomPermit types included:

Approval status included: Granted

Occupancy status included: Any status

Decision dates included: Between 08/01/2023 and 08/31/2023

Permit
number Owner's name Permit type DecisionParcel number Fee paid

Applicant's nameLand Record Cert. of Occ. Cost of project
LocationBook and Pages 

2023 COUNTY OF BENNINGTON, VERMONT Local/Custom Granted 08/23/2023  11011300 50.00

C.O. Not requiredCOUNTY OF BENNINGTON, VERMONT

811 US RT 7 SO

Demo Existing Building - Poor Condition

2023 CUTLER MICHAEL H Local/Custom Granted 08/09/2023  43515000 0.00

C.O. Not requiredMichael & Renee Cutler

113 LEONARD ST

Removal of Old Shed (Falling Apart)

2023 ST PIERRE JEROME Local/Custom Granted 08/21/2023  36500701 25.00

C.O. Not requiredST PIERRE JEROME

215 NORTHSIDE DR

Relocate Mobile Home to 1856 Middle Pownal Road

2023 STROHMAIER JOSEPH M & JOSEPH M II Local/Custom Granted 08/21/2023  12014101 0.00

C.O. Not requiredSTROHMAIER JOSEPH M & JOSEPH M II

1856 MIDDLE POWNAL RD

Remove Existing Home To Install/Construct New One



09/01/2023

10:29 am wleblanc
Town of Bennington Planning and Zoning

Page 1

Detailed Permit Report

SignPermit types included:

Approval status included: Granted

Occupancy status included: Any status

Decision dates included: Between 08/01/2023 and 08/31/2023

Permit
number Owner's name Permit type DecisionParcel number Fee paid

Applicant's nameLand Record Cert. of Occ. Cost of project
LocationBook and Pages 

S23-013 LOVE-N-CARE MINISTRIES INC Sign Granted 08/31/2023  50560100 60.00

1,200.00C.O. Not requiredLOVE-N-CARE MINISTRIES INC

497 MAIN ST

Bethany Revival Church



09/01/2023

10:29 am wleblanc
Town of Bennington Planning and Zoning

Page 1

Detailed Permit Report

ZoningPermit types included:

Approval status included: Granted

Occupancy status included: Any status

Decision dates included: Between 08/01/2023 and 08/31/2023

Permit
number Owner's name Permit type DecisionParcel number Fee paid

Applicant's nameLand Record Cert. of Occ. Cost of project
LocationBook and Pages 

23-057 ONORATO MARK & HOURAN AUDRA Zoning Granted 08/16/2023  06011700 50.00

20,000.00C.O. PendingMark Onorato & Audra Houran

CHAPEL RD

Construct A 24x28 Seasonal Camp

23-127 BENNINGTON LITTLE LEAGUE INC Zoning Granted 08/16/2023  44507100 50.00

680,000.00C.O. PendingGeoff Metcalfe

83 LITTLE LEAGUE RD

Construction Of 2 New Buildings: (1) Training Facility, (2) Maintenance & Bathroom Facility


	a091123sbp
	082823sbminutes
	W#08
	Executive Summary
	DevAg+exhibits
	errors and omissions
	Mgrs Report 91123
	amended Managers report
	Community Dev rpt 91123
	permits91123
	August 2023
	12 Year at a Glance
	Building Permits 08-23
	Custom and Local Permits 08-23
	Sign Permits 08-23
	Zoning Permits 08-23





